
WEST WINDSOR SELECTBOARD  
Draft Minutes 

March 16, 2009 

Present: Phil Arvidson, Bruce Boedtker, Tom Kenyon, Matt Birmingham, Martha Harrison, Mary Kay 
Cronin, Cathy Knight, Cathy Archibald, Ralph Johnson, Jim Kenyon, Karen Corkum, Gareth Henderson, 
Mike Spackman 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Phil Arvidson called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM.  
2) Executive Session – Phil made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss litigation. 

Tom seconded and amended the motion to include discussion of a personnel matter. Phil 
accepted the amendment to the motion, which passed unanimously. After discussion, Bruce 
Boedtker made a motion to come out of Executive Session. Tom seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously. Tom noted that no action was taken.  

3) Changes or Additions – The Selectboard noted that they have a scheduled meeting with VTrans 
on March 31st at 10:30 AM.  

4) Public Comment – Jim said the upgrading of the various alarm systems in town should be 
finished by the first of next week.  

5) ABS/SCIP Breast Cancer Walk: Cathy Knight – Cathy gave the Selectboard a flyer about 
the event, which is planned for May 2nd. Cathy said she filled out a public assembly 
permit application and spoke with Mike Spackman, Ralph Johnson and Nancy Gaynor, 
who are all okay with the plans. Mary Kay Cronin said the walk would show support for 
several parents and teachers who have been diagnosed with breast cancer recently. Mary 
Kay said the walk will start at 11:30 AM and, at the end, there will be music and hot 
dogs. Tom made a motion to approve the application for a public assembly license 
for Albert Bridge School for the “Passionately pink for the cure breast cancer walk” 
to be held on May 2, 2009. Bruce seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

6) Appointment of Officers – Bruce made a motion to appoint Jim Kenyon as Service 
Officer. Tom seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

7) Final Highway Access: Trace TanCreti – Mike suggested deferring consideration of final 
access approval until the Selectboard’s May meeting. Tom made a motion to that 
effect. Bruce seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

8) Discuss discontinuance/reclassification of town roads that only serve one residence – 
Mike said Bowers, Clough, Johnson and Prince Road only serve one residence. Bruce 
asked how many miles of town highway would be discontinued. Mike said the four roads 
cover approximately 2,000 feet altogether. Phil said he would like to know what the 
town’s cost per mile is for maintenance and how much the town would lose in state aid 
by discontinuing the roads mentioned. Mike said Trevor Starr will have that information 
at AOT’s meeting with the Selectboard on March 31st. Bruce said he is concerned that 
discontinuing the roads might reduce the value of the property and be considered a 
“taking.” Bruce suggested checking with the Vermont League of Cities and Towns 
(VLCT) to see if other towns have experienced litigation in similar situations. Tom said 
in the case of Blood Hill Road, it probably increased the value of the property. Phil 
agreed. Mike suggested talking to Trevor about it. The Selectboard agreed.  

9) Route 44 bridge (near Town Hall) – Tom said he noticed that some concrete is missing 
from the south façade of the Route 44 bridge so he asked Trevor Starr to look at it. Phil 
said he looked at it and the reinforcing steel is exposed, which is probably not a big deal, 
but he suspects the state will want to do something about it. Bruce said he talked to 
Trevor, who sent someone to look at it and it needs maintenance but does not present a 
hazard. Bruce said the Route 44 bridge near the town garage has similar issues.  



10) Town Constable’s Report – Constable Johnson said he has to go to Cavendish on April 
3rd for a variety of reasons and will probably be there all day.  

11) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report – Cathy said she has liquor licenses for the Selectboard to 
sign. The Selectboard agreed by consensus to sign the licenses at the end of the meeting 
when they sign the Clerk’s orders.  

12) Highway Foreman’s Report – Mike said Gary’s truck is being repaired for an antifreeze 
leak, which is not under warranty. Mike said sand and gravel bid letters have been sent 
out to Cersosimo, Casella, Blanchard and Pike Industries. Mike asked Martha to send a 
letter to D&D also. Mike gave the Selectboard a summary, prepared by the Southern 
Windsor County Regional Planning Commission, showing sand and gravel usage for the 
various towns in the area. Mike said he thinks mud season is mostly over.  

13) Highway grant applications – Martha said the applications are mostly finished and are 
due when the Selectboard meets with Trevor Starr. Mike said the town is applying for 
funds for a bridge on Silver Hill Road and for paving on the Brownsville-Hartland Road. 
Martha said this year VTrans is asking the Selectboard to certify that West Windsor has 
adopted highway standards, which it has.   

14) Tree Cutting Seminar in Town Forest – Mike said VLCT is putting on a two-day hands-
on chainsaw safety seminar and he would like West Windsor to host it in the town wood 
lot. Mike said he already spoke with the wood lot committee. The Selectboard agreed by 
consensus that VLCT could hold the seminar in the town wood lot.  

15) Project Review Sheet: Hiking trail maintenance – The Selectboard agreed that it is not 
clear whether the proposed work is being done on the portion of the trail that is in 
Windsor or West Windsor. Tom suggested passing the information on to the Town Forest 
Committee. Phil and Bruce agreed. Mike said the proposed maintenance makes sense.  

16) Public Works Emergency/Non-Emergency Mutual Aid Agreement – Phil said his 
recollection is that he has signed this in the past and he wonders if we need to sign it 
again. Phil added that his understanding is that the agreement is completely discretionary. 
Tom said he thinks there should be an attachment with a list of contacts. Martha said 
there is an attachment; she just didn’t copy it for the board. Phil said his recollection is 
that Mike is the contact person for West Windsor, which makes sense. Tom made a 
motion to authorize the Chair to sign the Public Works Emergency/Non-Emergency 
Mutual Aid Agreement. Bruce seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Jim 
said he would make copies for the Emergency Management handbooks. Tom pointed out 
that Bruce needs an Emergency Management handbook.  

17) Review highway access ordinance and application form – Tom suggested that the access 
ordinance should specify that changes to approved accesses should require Selectboard 
approval. Phil and Mike agreed. Phil said he doesn’t think the Selectboard should have to 
inspect every proposed access unless Mike thinks it’s necessary. Tom said he thinks the 
ordinance should apply to legal trails as well as town highways. Mike said the ordinance 
should require a permit for any curb cut including curb cuts for trails. Tom suggested that 
Mike and Martha redraft the ordinance for consideration at the April Selectboard 
meeting. All agreed.  

18) Discuss the assignment of individual Selectboard members to oversee Town Hall, 
Sheddsville Cemetery, transportation, solid waste, etc. – Phil said this hasn’t been done 
since he’s been on the Selectboard. Tom said it’s nice for the Constable to have a specific 
person to contact regarding dogs, for example. Ralph said he thinks the Selectboard 
should have an agreement with Lucy MacKenzie so he can bring dogs out there and have 
a contact person that he can get hold of when they’re not open. Phil asked Tom to come 



up with a specific proposal. Tom agreed, but asked Bruce if he would take over as the 
Solid Waste representative.  

19) Correspondence: Steve & Lisa Knight – Phil summarized the Selectboard’s progress to 
date on considering the straightening of Hammond Hill Road. Phil said during 2009 
budget discussions, the Selectboard decided not to proceed with the project this year. 
Bruce asked if the Knights would have to agree to the project. Phil said yes. Tom said the 
project would involve a land swap. Mike noted that the project has been surveyed. Tom 
said the Knights are concerned that the project might result in an increase in traffic speed. 
Tom said once everyone agrees on a plan, the town can budget for it in the future. Phil 
said the Selectboard has not communicated to the Knights that they decided not to go 
ahead with the project this year for budgetary reasons. Mike said there’s no reason not to 
see if the town and the Knights can come to an agreement. Phil said he thinks the 
Selectboard should inform the Knights that the town has no plan to pursue the project this 
year. Tom suggested that Bruce and Mike meet with the Knights. Bruce asked about 
communicating with the Knights. Tom said communication is by email through Martha. 
Bruce said he would stop by and look at the plans. Mike noted that he met Matt 
Birmingham on his way in and Matt is going to contact Bruce to set up a meeting for the 
three of them (Matt, Bruce and Mike) to discuss the McCullough situation. DuBois & 
King – Tom suggested submitting an application for the renovation of the basement of 
the Town Hall, including the heating system. The Selectboard did not think it would be 
possible to meet the deadline for this year (March 19th). Phil told Tom if he wants to 
pursue it for next year, he has no problem with that. Bruce offered to contact them to find 
out what type of work they typically do and what types of projects have received grants 
in the past. Census Bureau – Martha said they appear to be inviting us to form a census 
committee. The Selectboard agreed by unanimous consent to table consideration of the 
Census Bureau’s suggestion. Initiative for Rural Emergency Medical Services – Tom 
suggested forwarding the letter to the FAST Squad. Bruce and Phil agreed. Phil noted 
that the town would cover the cost of a FAST Squad member attending the workshop. 
Phil said in the future the town should consider covering the cost of EMT training. Bruce 
agreed and suggested finding out when and where the course is available in this area. Joe 
Patrissi (VT Dept. for Children & Families) – Martha said this is about appointing a 
service officer, which the Selectboard did earlier in the meeting, but there’s a form that 
needs to be signed. Russell Velander – Mike said they send this letter every year.  

20) Other Business – Windows & vault: Tom asked that the Town Hall windows and the 
vault be added to the April agenda. Cathy Archibald said she needs a fireproof file 
cabinet where she can put the records from the old vault. Tom said the town could use 
two or three more racks for mylars also. Cathy said the cabinet would cost $2,700. Phil 
asked if that amount is in the budget. Cathy said the funds could come out of restoration 
records. Phil said Cathy is authorized to buy the cabinet if she can figure out where to put 
it, but he asked her to come back to the Selectboard when she has some specific details 
on it. Computer: Martha said, after talking to Phil earlier today about the possibility of 
getting a new computer, she called Staples and got a price estimate of between $300 and 
$500. Tom asked how the computers are being backed up these days. Martha said the 
computer consultant, who was in last week to network the computers, said that burning 
DVDs would be the best way for her to back up her computer. Martha said she has a 
DVD burner now, but she needs to get some DVDs. Bruce said he has an IT guy and 
would be happy to work with him and Martha to figure out what she needs. Phil and Tom 
agreed. Karen Corkum: Karen Corkum introduced herself as the new General Manager of 
the Holiday Inn Club vacations at Ascutney Mountain Resort. Karen said they want to be 



partners with the community and asked the Selectboard to contact her if she can be of any 
assistance. Karen reported they had to eliminate some jobs last week. Karen said the 
refurbishment of the Windham building should be finished by the end of May. Phil 
welcomed Karen. Summer schedule: Martha said her husband just got a full-time job, 
which will make it difficult for her to work full-time in the summer, so she was 
wondering if the Selectboard is open to the idea of her working ¾-time in the summer. 
Phil said the Selectboard discussed this earlier and they are open to considering it but 
need more specifics. Bruce told Martha that the Selectboard had also discussed what they 
could do to help her manage her workload. Tom asked Martha to list all the different jobs 
she does with a rough idea about the number of hours, or the percentage of time, that she 
spends on each. VLCT bill: Cathy said she received a bill from the Vermont League of 
Cities and Towns for Bruce to attend a moderator’s workshop. Bruce said he did not sign 
up for that workshop and would contact VLCT to straighten it out.  

21) Minutes: February 3, 2009 – Tom made a motion to approve the minutes of February 
3, 2009. Phil seconded the motion, which passed with Bruce abstaining. February 9, 
2009 – Tom made a motion to approve the minutes of February 9, 2009, as amended 
and corrected. Phil seconded the motion, which passed with Bruce abstaining. March
3, 2009 - Tom made a motion to approve the minutes of March 3, 2009. Bruce 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

22) Adjourn/Sign Town Clerk’s Orders & Liquor Licenses – At 7:55 PM, Bruce made a 
motion to adjourn subject to signing the Town Clerk’s orders, the liquor licenses 
and any other documents that need to be signed. Tom seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Martha Harrison 


